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Corporate Profile

Empire Industries Ltd. (“Empire”) is a public company that was formed in July 2006. Empire’s mission is to 
increase shareholder value by adding value to steel.  Empire operates the following wholly owned business 
units:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued...

30.

31.

32.

Subsidiaries

Guarantees and contingencies

Loan guarantees
The Group is contingently liable under one guarantee given to a third-party lender who has provided 
certain financing facilities to associated investments. As at December 31, 2012, the maximum amount 
of fixed guarantees provided to a third-party lender on behalf of an affiliated company is $1,997 ($936 
as at December 31, 2011). In addition, the Company has provided an unlimited guarantee on behalf of 
an equity investment over which the Company exercises significant influence.

Letters of Credit
In the normal course of business, the Group contracted letters of credit for an amount of up to $280 as 
at December 31, 2012 ($200 as at December 31, 2011).

Director and officer indemnification
The Group indemnifies its directors and officers against any and all claims or losses reasonably incurred 
in the performance of their service to the Group to the extent permitted by law. The Group has acquired 
and maintains liability insurance for its directors and officers as well as those of its wholly-owned 
subsidiaries and certain affiliated companies.

Other indemnification provisions
From time to time, the Group enters into agreements in the normal course of operations and in 
connection with business or asset acquisitions and dispositions. By their nature, these agreements may 
provide for indemnification of counterparties. The varying nature of these indemnification agreements 
prevents the Group from making a reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amount it could incur.  
Historically, the Group has not made any significant payments in connection with these indemnification 
provisions.

Other contingencies
The Group is subject to various product liability or general claims and legal proceedings covering 
matters that arise in the ordinary course of business.  All such matters are adequately covered by 
insurance or by accruals, or are determined by management to be without merit, or of such kinds or 
amounts as would not have a material adverse effect on the financial results of the Group.

Divestitures
During the year, the Group disposed of the assets of its KWH and Somerset Engineering divisions with 
a net book value of $50 for gross proceeds of $1,406 resulting in a gain on sale of $1,356.  Proceeds 
of $1,356 were used to retire subordinate notes payable and the remaining $50 was used for general 
working capital purposes.

Business

Design and manufacture complex ride systems, telescopes and custom 
machinery and equipment for the global theme park, education/
government, and infrastructure markets.

Turnkey global supplier of premium media-based entertainment attractions 
to major theme parks, and provider of parts and service for theme park 
attractions.

Structural steel fabrication and installation for the industrial and 
infrastructure markets in western Canada, primarily the oil sands and 
mining.

Manufacture hydrovac trucks for excavation service providers to the oil and 
gas industry and the municipal market.

Fabrication of tanks, pressure vessels and other specialty carbon and 
stainless steel products.

In addition to these wholly owned businesses, Empire holds significant equity interests in two major 
business enterprises:

Empire maintains its head office in Winnipeg, Manitoba.  Its common shares are listed on the TSX Venture 
Exchange under the trading symbol EIL.

Division

Dynamic Structures

Dynamic Attractions

Empire Iron Works

Tornado Hydrovacs

Parr Metal Fabricators

Enterprise

Athabasca Chipewyan 
Empire (ACE) Industrial 
Services Ltd. (49%)

Dongguan Qiguang 
Dynamic Steel Structures, 
Ltd. (45%)

Business

Steel fabrication and installation, machining, multi-trade industrial 
construction and maintenance services, primarily serving the oil sands 
market. Facilities are in Fort McMurray, AB. This is a joint venture between 
the Athabasca Chipewyan First Nation Business Group and Empire 
Industries Ltd.

Fabrication and installation of complex structural steel projects in China 
through a joint venture Company owned 55% by Guangdong Qiguang Steel 
Structures Co. Ltd. and 45% by Empire Industries Ltd. Operates out of a 
leased facility in Guangdong Province in China.
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2012 Report to Shareholders

Highlights
In 2012, the Group has concentrated on leveraging its globally competitive engineering and design 
strengths, using this to generate higher margin returns. The Group has also continued to reduce its 
investment in those domestic divisions that were capital intensive and under severe competitive pricing 
pressure due to slow demand and fierce competition and faced similar outlook in the quarters and years 
ahead. In 2012, we invested heavily in replacing this reduction in domestic capacity with an increased 
capacity and lower cost foreign steel fabrication capability in China through its 45% owned joint venture.   

There are two general observations we would like to highlight. First, we have returned to positive EBITDA 
after years of grinding it out through the recession and transforming our business in response to market 
threats and opportunities. Secondly, we have more than doubled our backlog year over year and the mix 
of the backlog is shifting to our higher value added, proprietary engineered products. Furthermore, we 
expect this trend of increasing bottom line performance and strengthening backlog to continue because 
the markets we are targeting have a robust outlook of growth ahead. The company is now focusing on 
strengthening its balance sheet to perform its increasingly international backlog of work.

Some of the specific initiatives completed by the Group to give effect to the strategic transformational 
change during 2012 were:

• Secured a contract from a global customer to design, engineer and manufacture the mechanical and 
   structural systems of a media-based attraction. The contract was valued in excess of $30 million, to be 
   executed over a period of approximately two years.

• Commenced work on a contract to design, engineer and manufacture two flying theatres for a theme park 
   in China, valued in excess of $10 million, to be executed over the next two years.

• Secured a $3.8 million contract to design, engineer and manufacture a media-based attraction for a 
   theme park in the United Arab Emirates, to be executed over 12 months.

• Retired $5.2 million of long term debt and reduced bank operating debt by $6.0 million, using its 
   significantly improved cash flow from operating activities of $11.4 million.

• Completed the sale of its KWH Constructors and Somerset Engineering divisions for proceeds of $1.4 
   million and a gain on sale of $1.3 million in the first quarter of 2012.  The proceeds were used to retire 
   notes payable held by the Group.

• Ceased operations of its bulk material handling equipment division in Welland, Ontario in the fourth 
   quarter of 2012.
 
2012 Summary of Financial Results
Revenue in 2012 was $83.7 million compared with $54.1 million in 2011, an increase of 55%.

The Adjusted gross margin improved significantly to 13.4% of revenue in 2012 versus 8.5% of revenue in 
2011.

The Adjusted EBITDA also turned around significantly to $2.0 million in 2012 versus a loss of $3.3 million in 
2011, for a positive variance of $5.2 million.

The Group had net income from continuing operations for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012 of 
$0.9 million ($0.01 basic per share) compared to a net loss of $6.2 million ($0.04 per share) and a net loss 
of $0.6 million ($0.00 per share) versus a net loss of $7.3 million ($0.05 per share) in 2011.

The investment in strengthening and broadening our specialized engineered product line in 2011 is starting 
to pay off in contract awards as evidenced by our backlog increasing from December 31, 2011 of $43 
million to $92 million as of December 31, 2012.
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Business Unit Initiatives
Our engineered product business divisions continue to focus on manufacturing high value added, 
proprietary products such as amusement ride systems, media-based attractions, hydrovac trucks, custom 
design/build equipment and observatory telescopes.  Many of the company’s products are globally 
competitive and exported around the world.

In 2012, Dynamic Structures was busy manufacturing two world class rides for two of the industry leading 
amusement park operators. In addition, the engineering and detailing group was very busy working on 
designing and detailing several new attraction products that our Dynamic Attractions business unit has 
been selling around the world. 

Even though Dynamic Attractions was only launched in the fall of 2011, it has already established itself 
as a leader in the burgeoning business of selling proprietary media based attractions generating contract 
awards in Asia and the Middle East. These markets are particularly important, because they are places 
where entertainment infrastructure is in its infancy and domestic demand is growing rapidly because of the 
increased affluence of their middle classes. This new subsidiary has an impressive pipeline of outstanding 
proposals that we expect to continue to feed our rapidly growing backlog in 2013 and after.

Our hydrovac truck manufacturing division also had a very good year, improving its manufacturing 
processes, increasing throughput, improving plant productivity and increasing its backlog of truck orders.   
All this translated into its best year ever from a bottom line perspective. More improvements are expected, 
as the demand for our unique product continues to grow.

We have consciously narrowed the focus of our steel fabrication and installation businesses to concentrate 
on steel fabrication for industrial and infrastructure applications in Western Canada, primarily the oil sands 
and mining. In 2012, the Company’s steel fabrication business units benefited from their significantly 
lower fixed operating costs and lower amount of capital employed and turned in a healthy level of 
profitability from a major loss the prior year. The company has retained a structural steel fabrication plant 
in Edmonton, a plate and pipe steel fabrication plant in Vancouver and a pressure vessel, tank and pipe 
shop in Winnipeg. The sold or shuttered steel fabrication capacity in Western Canada has been replaced 
with comparable, much lower cost capacity in China. We embarked on a major implementation of quality 
systems for our Chinese steel fabrication joint venture throughout 2012, and attained Canadian Welding 
Bureau certification in late 2012.

The Company is also pleased to see steady progress from its First Nation partnership in Fort McMurray 
where our business servicing the oil sands industrial maintenance market returned to a healthy level of 
profitability.

Outlook
The Group’s backlog remains strong as the economy strengthens and Empire’s contract awards increase.  
At December 31, 2012, the Group’s backlog was $92 million, up from $43 million as of December 31, 2011.

The Group expects to continue to improve its operating performance in 2013 as a result of the following:

• the Group has built a robust backlog of high value added attraction products to be manufactured;
• our hydrovac truck manufacturing operation continues to improve its throughput and profitability;
• steel fabrication projects in Alberta and BC are softening but we have dramatically lowered our fixed 
   costs in this business unit so we expect profitability to be reasonable; and
• our Chinese joint venture in Guangdong Province was certified by the Canadian Welding Bureau in late 
   2012. It will begin to produce sub-components of our attractions destined for China, further increasing 
   our manufacturing capacity.
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The Group’s subsidiary Dynamic Attractions Ltd. was officially launched in November of 2011 and has 
already generated $31 million of backlog and has an increasing pipeline of global prospects it is pursuing. 
The Group invested heavily in producing a world class product line of media based attractions, and the 
growing backlog of contract awards and pipeline of prospects is a testament to the very strong demand 
for the innovative products that we have created, based upon a rapidly growing market to purchase media 
based attractions globally.

Dynamic Structures continues to be awarded and deliver world-class and large-scale contracts in the 
theme park attraction business. Its backlog is very strong and the continued awards are a testament to our 
gold standard of quality and capability in this regard. 

The Group continues to direct its focus and marketing efforts towards penetrating the higher value added, 
engineered products segment. The Group’s Hydrovac Truck division continues to operate at full capacity 
and has a strong backlog with delivery dates extending out 6-9 months. During 2012 this business unit 
has increased its production capacity and is continuing to identify opportunities for further production 
increases.

The Group’s unique aboriginal partnership with the Athabasca Chipewyan First Nation in Fort McMurray 
is called ACE Industrial Services. ACE returned to profitability in 2012 and we expect its growth in the 
outsourced maintenance services market of Canada’s oil sands stand it in good stead for the years to 
come as the oil sands production steadily grows above the current level of two million barrels per day of 
production.

As the Group continues its transformation, the key attributes discussed above position the Group to 
continue to improve its operating performance, which will in turn, continue to improve its financial 
performance.   

The past four years have been challenging for the Company. The repositioning of the Company into higher 
margin, engineered products and a low cost, high value added provider of fabricated steel will enable the 
Company to generate sustainable future profitability. Profits generated will be sheltered from tax through 
the availability of $21 million of loss carry forwards.

The Company remains focused on capitalizing its balance sheet in a way to provide adequate working 
capital to sustain a growing volume of business, especially internationally. Our international sales will be 
limited until such time as this initiative is accomplished.

Management and the Board of Directors are confident that the restructuring and strategic repositioning 
initiatives that have been put in place since 2010, are successfully transforming the Company and returning 
it to profitable growth in 2013, delivering growth in shareholder value.

There has been a reasonable amount of share trading activity in 2012 so we would like to welcome the 
new shareholders that have decided to join us on our mission. We would also like to thank our employees, 
management and directors who have also guided us through this transformational period. It has been 
difficult and challenging for everyone, but we are confident the future is unfolding as planned.
 
 
  

“Ian Macdonald”                                               “Guy Nelson”
Chairman of the Board                                   Chief Executive Officer
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the 3 and 12 months ended December 31, 2012

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) of financial condition and results of 
operations of Empire Industries Ltd. (“EIL” or the “Group”) is supplemental to, and should be read in 
conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2012. 

The audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes of the Group for the year ended 
December 31, 2012 have been prepared in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(“IFRS”) and require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported and 
disclosed in such financial statements and related notes. Unless otherwise indicated, a reference to a year 
relates to the Group’s fiscal year ended December 31. All amounts are reported in Canadian dollars unless 
specifically stated to the contrary.

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the contents of this 
MD&A on April 29, 2013. Disclosure contained in this document is current to this date, unless otherwise 
stated.

Additional information on EIL is available through the System for Electronic Document Analysis and 
Retrieval (“SEDAR”) at www.sedar.com

Business Description
The Group’s operations take place primarily through the following wholly owned operating divisions:

Division

Dynamic Structures

Dynamic Attractions

Tornado Hydrovacs

Empire Iron Works

Parr Metal Fabricators

Ward Industrial Equipment

Business

Design and manufacture complex ride systems, telescopes and custom machinery 
and equipment. Leased production facility is in Port Coquitlam, BC.

Turn key supplier of premium entertainment attractions and provider of parts 
and service of amusement park attractions. Leased sales offices in Victoria, BC, 
Arlington, TX and Toronto, ON.

Manufacture hydrovac trucks for excavation service providers to the oil and gas 
industry and the municipal market. Leased production facility is in Stettler, AB and 
a sales office located in Calgary, AB.

Structural steel fabrication and installation. One owned production facility west of 
Edmonton, AB and a leased sales office in Edmonton AB.

Fabrication of tanks, pressure vessels and other specialty carbon and stainless 
steel products. Leased production facility is in Winnipeg, MB.

Design and fabrication of bulk material handling equipment and air cleaning 
equipment. This business unit was discontinued in 2012.
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Enterprise

Athabasca Chipewyan Empire (ACE) 
Industrial Services Ltd. (49%)

Dongguan Qiguang Dynamic Steel 
Structures, Ltd. (45%)

Business

Steel fabrication and installation, machining, multi-trade industrial construction 
and maintenance services, primarily serving the oil sands market. Facilities are in 
Fort McMurray, AB. This is a joint venture between the Athabasca Chipewyan First 
Nation Business Group and Empire Industries Ltd.

Fabrication and installation of complex structural steel projects in China through a 
joint venture Company owned 55% by Guangdong Qiguang Steel Structures Co. 
Ltd. and 45% by Empire Industries Ltd. Incorporation was granted by Chinese 
authorities during 2011 and actual operations commenced on August of 2011 
operating out of a leased facility in Guangdong Province.

EIL maintains its head office in Winnipeg, Manitoba. The Group’s common shares are listed on the TSX 
Venture Exchange under the trading symbol EIL.

Significant Events
In the fourth quarter, the Group
• Decided to discontinue operations of its bulk material handling equipment division in Welland Ontario

During the first nine months, the Group
• Completed the sale of KWH Constructor’s Corp for proceeds of $1.4 million and a gain on sale of $1.3 
   million. The proceeds were used to retire notes payable held by the Group.

• Announced the finalization of a contract to design, engineer and manufacture two flying theatres for a 
   theme park in China, valued in excess of $10 million, to be executed over the next 12-24 months.

• Announced the finalization of a $3.8 million contract to design, engineer and manufacture a media-based 
   attraction for a theme park in the United Arab Emirates to be executed over 12 months.

• Secured a contract from a global customer to design, engineer and manufacture the mechanical and 
   structural systems of a media-based attraction. The contract, valued in excess of $30 million, will be 
   executed over a period of approximately 2 years.

Consolidated Financial Results

In addition to these wholly owned businesses, the Group holds significant equity interests in two major 
business enterprises:
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Operating Results
Non-IFRS methods
In this MD&A, the Group uses two financial management metrics that are not in accordance with IFRS 
“Adjusted earnings (loss) before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (Adjusted EBITDA)” and 
“Adjusted Gross Margin”.  Because these terms are not defined by IFRS they cannot be formally presented 
in the consolidated financial statements. The definition of Adjusted EBITDA does not take into account the 
Group’s share of profit of an associate investment, gains and losses on the disposal of assets, fair value 
changes in foreign currency forward contracts and non-cash components of stock based compensation.  
The Adjusted Gross Margin metric is the result of revenues less cost of sales, excluding depreciation of 
property, plant and equipment and amortization.  It should be noted that the Group’s definition of Adjusted 
EBITDA and Adjusted Gross Margin may differ from those definitions used by other companies. 

While not IFRS measures, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Gross Margin are used by management, 
creditors, analysts, investors and other financial stakeholders to assess the Group’s performance and 
management from a financial and operational perspective.

Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to Net Loss

Fourth Quarter Analysis
In the three month period ended December 31, 2012, the Group’s continuing operations had increased 
revenues of 96% over the comparative three-month period ended December 31, 2011. Adjusted gross 
margins were 7.6% higher in the quarter compared to the same quarter in 2011 realized by increased 
volume of work in all operating divisions. However the adjusted gross margin realized in the fourth quarter 
was approximately 3% lower than the margins realized in the first nine months of 2012. This was due to 
increased volume of industrial fabrication executed in the quarter, some of which was outsourced to keep 
up with demand, albeit at lower margins.

Calculation of Adjusted Gross Margin
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The Group’s selling, general and administrative expenses were $1.0 million higher than the same three-
month period in 2011 as a result of the continuation of the development and scale of Dynamic Attractions 
Inc. and Dynamic Attractions Ltd, the termination of certain employees, increased corporate investment 
associated with the Group’s continued efforts to shift its focus to high value added steel fabrication and 
specialized manufacturing initiatives globally.

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations for the quarter ended December 31, 2012 improved by $1.3 
million over the same period of 2011 which is the net effect of the factors discussed above.

Other income in the quarter of $0.3 million consists of an impairment charge on the carrying value of an 
investment in an associate of the Group.  Depreciation has declined by $0.1 million in the quarter compared 
to 2011 which has was the result of the disposal of certain items of property, plant and equipment and 
management re-evaluating its useful life of certain depreciable assets.

Finance costs during quarter were $0.2 million lower than the same period of 2011 due to lower overall 
debt levels.  Share of (profit) loss from an associate represents the Group’s interest in ACE Industrial 
Services and Qiguang Dynamic Structures Ltd.  The value changes in foreign currency forward contracts 
represents the mark to market position of the outstanding contract as at December 31, 2012.  There were 
no outstanding foreign currency forward contracts outstanding in the same period of 2011. 

Stock-based compensation is the fair value derived from Black-Scholes calculations performed on stock 
options issued, outstanding and exercisable.

Investment tax credits charged to selling, general and administrative expenses are the reciprocal amounts 
that have been charged through the Group’s tax provision. There were no corresponding credits utilized 
during the three-month period ended December 31, 2012.

Comprehensive loss from continuing operations before tax for the quarter declined by $0.3 million from the 
quarter ended December 31, 2011 as a result of the factors discussed above.

The Group’s comprehensive loss from continuing operations in the quarter included a tax recovery of $0.2 
million in the fourth quarter of 2012 compared to a charge of $0.3 million in the same period of 2011. 

Fiscal 2012 Analysis
Revenues from continuing operations in 2012 of $83.7 million, an increase of 55% over 2011 and adjusted 
gross margin  in 2012 was $11.2 million an increase of $6.6M over 2011.  

Selling, General and Administration expenses from continuing operations for the 12 months ended 
December 31, 2012 increased by $1.3 million to $9.3 over the 12 months ended December 31, 2011 driven 
mostly by a full year of operations of the Group’s Dynamic Attractions Ltd. and Dynamic Attractions Inc. 
divisions.  

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations for the year ended December 31, 2012 increased by $5.3 
million to $2.0 from an adjusted EBITDA loss of $3.3 million in 2011 which is the net effect of the factors 
discussed above.

Depreciation of property plant and equipment and amortization of intangible assets from continuing 
operations for the 12 month period ended December 31, 2012 was $0.7 million lower than the prior period 
which is reflective of decisions made by management on the useful lives of certain items of property, plant 
and equipment, completion of depreciation of intangible assets and lower asset levels through disposals on 
certain items of property, plant and equipment.

Other (income) losses from continuing operations in 2012 consist of a non-recurring gain on the sale of 
KWH Constructors Corp. of $1.4 million, offset by an impairment charge of $0.3 million on and associate 
investment and losses on disposal items of property plant and equipment of $0.2 million. Other income in
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2011 consisted of a gain on the settlement of subordinate notes payable of $1.0 million as well as net gains 
on the sale of other items of property, plant and equipment of $0.3 million.

Finance costs from continuing operations represent interest on long term debt, subordinate notes payable, 
notes payable and revolving bank facility. The lower interest costs in 2012 by $0.5 million are primarily due 
to permanent reductions in overall debt levels from 2011.

Share of profit (loss) from an associate represents the Company’s share of the equity earnings (loss) from 
its investment in ACE Industrial Services Ltd and Dongguan Qiguang Dynamic Structures Ltd.

Fair value changes of derivative instruments arise from the Company’s foreign exchange hedging strategy. 
The Company enters into various contracts in U.S. dollars in the normal course of business. Derivative 
instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts are used by the Company to reduce its exposure 
to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. In the normal course, the Company does not hold or 
issue derivative financial instruments for derivative trading purposes. The Company’s derivatives do not 
qualify for hedge accounting and are therefore reported in earnings on a mark-to-market basis using 
closing market quotations. The change in fair value of the foreign currency forward contracts reflects the 
mark to market position of forward contract outstanding at December 31, 2012.

Stock-based compensation is the fair value derived from Black-Scholes calculations performed on stock 
options issued, outstanding and exercisable. 

Investment tax credits charged to selling, general and administrative expenses are the reciprocal amounts 
that have been charged through the Group’s tax provision. There were no corresponding credits utilized 
during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Comprehensive loss for the year from continuing operations improved by $6.7 million from the year ended 
December 31, 2011 as result of the net result of the factors discussed above.

The Group’s comprehensive loss from continuing operations during the year included a tax recovery of $0.2 
million compared to a charge of $0.3 million in the same period of 2011.

Selected Annual and Quarterly Financial Information
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity
For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company’s continuing operations generated $1.2 million 
of cash and $1.0 million of cash was used in discontinued operations, compared with $5.5 million of 
cash used in continuing operations and $1.7 million in cash used in discontinued operations through the 
2011 excluding the impact of changes in non-cash working capital amounts. The Group expects that its 
operations will generate sufficient cash on a go forward basis to meet the Group’s obligations.  

The Group has a $7.0 million revolving credit facility with Canadian Western Bank, of which $2.9 million was 
drawn as of December 31, 2012. The Group’s marginable assets at December 31, 2011 were $9.5 million 
which is $6.6 million in excess of the Company’s total draw on the operating line.

The Group made $5.3 million of cash principal repayments during the year. Total long-term debt of $3.9 
million as at December 31, 2012 consisted of $0.2 million of long term debt due within 12 months, $1.4 
million of long term debt due beyond 12 months (all of which is currently classified as short term debt 
as a result of the Group failing to comply with one of its loan covenants), $0.7 million of subordinated 
notes, $0.7 million of a limited recourse loan and $0.9 million of subordinated convertible debentures. The 
subordinated notes payable are subordinated and postponed to the Canadian Western Bank and cannot be 
repaid while any Canadian Western Bank debt is outstanding. During 2012, $1.4 million of the balance was 
settled during the year as the company divested it interest in KWH Constructors Corp.

Shareholders’ Equity
The retained deficit of $34.7 million at December 31, 2011 was $0.6 million higher than the retained deficit 
at December 31, 2011 due to the net loss in the period. No dividends were declared or paid in the year. The 
Group maintains a stock option plan for the benefit of officers, directors, key employees and consultants 
of the Group. The Group had 9,886,000 outstanding options at December 31, 2012. The average exercise 
price of the outstanding options is $0.18 per share.  Of these options, 6,511,000 are currently exercisable at 
an average exercise price of $0.21 per share.
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Fully Diluted Shares
As at April 26, 2013

Issued and outstanding common shares

Securities convertible into common shares
Convertible Debentures
Warrants
Stock Options
Total Securities convertible into common shares

Fully Diluted Shares

  

  193,239,608
 
 
10,600,000 
57,000,000 
9,850,000 
  77,450,000
 
  270,689,608

An additional 52,000,000 warrants will expire during 2013 if not exercised.

Financial Ratios
The following information is based on the data disclosed in Note 26 (Capital Disclosures and Management) 
from the 2012 audited Financial Statements:

Financial Ratios

Current portion of long-term debt
Long-term debt 
Proceeds receivable from sales of assets

Net funded debt

Convertible debentures
Subordinated notes and limited recourse loan
Shareholders’ equity

Tangible net worth

Capitalization

Net funded debt : Capitalization

December 31, 2012

          224
1,386

-

1,610

929
1,408
7,200

9,537

11,147

14.4%

December 31, 2011

            5,266
1,582

(6,092)

756

903
2,763
7,662

11,328

12,084

6.3%

The Group’s leverage ratio (net funded debt to capitalization) may fluctuate from month to month due to 
underlying cyclical and seasonal variations in short-term debt used to finance working capital requirements. 
The Group’s leverage ratio increased to 14.4% from 6.3% at December 31, 2011.

The Group’s current ratio of 0.96 is improved from the December 31, 2011 ratio of 0.91 due to higher 
working capital volumes and less long-term debt recorded as current liabilities. The Group was not in 
compliance with certain of its bank covenants as of December 31, 2012. Under IFRS presentation, this 
results in a re-classification of long term debt to current.

Market Capitalization
The market capitalization of the Group’s 193,239,608 issued and outstanding common shares at April 26, 
2012 was $7.7 million or $0.04 per share which is consistent with the Company’s book value per share at 
December 31, 2012. The issued and outstanding common shares at April 26, 2013, together with securities 
convertible into common shares are summarized in the table below.
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Segment Performance
The Group’s operations are performed in two main segments, Steel Fabrication Services and Manufacturing. 
The performance of the groups operating segments are listed below:

Consistent with the discussion above, revenues increased substantially compared to the prior year and 
yielded higher margins. Other gains and losses were a result of the Group realizing a gain of $1.3 million on 
the sale of KWH Constructors Corp., offset by an impairment charge of $0.3 million on the carrying value of 
and associate investment and losses of $0.1 million on the disposal of certain items of property plant and 
equipment.

Revenues and gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization has increased from the same period 
last year due to an increased demand in the hydrovac trucks manufactured by the Group. All other 
components of the segment are consistent with 2011.
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Other Matters

Critical Accounting Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS necessitates the use of management 
estimates, assumptions and judgment that affect reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and 
expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. 
Although management reviews its estimates on an ongoing basis, actual results may differ from these 
estimates as confirming events occur. The following components of the financial statements depend most 
heavily on such management estimates, assumptions and judgment, any changes in which may have a 
material impact on the Group’s financial condition or results of operations. For more information about 
certain assumptions and risks that may affect these estimates, assumptions and judgments, please see the 
“Forward Looking Information” section of this MD&A.

Revenue Recognition 
The percentage of completion method and the revenue to be recognized are determined on the basis of 
estimates for which the Group has implemented an internal financial budgeting and reporting system which 
relies on historical experience. The Group reviews the estimates of contract revenue and contract costs as 
of each reporting date. Contract losses are recognized as soon as they are identified.

Cash generating units 
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash inflows. Management determines which groups of assets are capable of 
generating cash inflows that are largely independent of other operations within the Group.

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Given the nature of business and the credit terms provided to customers, estimates and judgements 
are inherent in the on-going assessment of the recoverability of some accounts receivable. The Group 
maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to reflect expected credit losses. The Group is not able 
to predict changes in the financial conditions of its customers and the Group’s judgement related to the 
recoverability of accounts receivable may be materially impacted if the financial condition of the Group’s 
customers deteriorates.

Valuation of inventory
Estimates and judgements are inherent in the determination of the net realizable value of inventories. The 
cost of inventories may not be fully recoverable if they are damaged or if the selling price of the inventory 
is less than its cost.  The Group regularly reviews its inventory quantities and reduces the cost attributed to 
inventory no longer deemed to be fully recoverable. Estimates related to the determination of net realizable 
value may be impacted by a number of factors including market conditions.

Share-based payments
The Group measures the cost of share-based payments to employees by reference to the fair value of the 
equity instruments at the date on which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share-based payment 
transactions requires determining the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms 
and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires the determination of the most appropriate inputs to 
the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making 
assumptions about them.  

Valuation of Long-lived Assets and Asset Impairment
The Group periodically assesses the recoverability of values assigned to long-lived assets after considering 
potential impairment indicated by such factors as business and market trends, future prospects, current 
market value and other economic factors. In performing its review of recoverability, management estimates 
the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. If the sum 
of the expected future cash flows is less than the carrying value of the asset, an impairment loss would 
be recognized based on the excess of the carrying value of the asset over the fair market value calculated 
using discounted future cash flows.
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Useful lives of key property, plant and equipment
The depreciation method and useful lives reflect the pattern in which management expects the asset’s 
future economic benefits to be consumed by the Group. Useful lives, depreciation methods, and residual 
values are reviewed periodically and, historically, changes to estimates of remaining useful lives have not 
been material. 

Assets held for sale
The Group classifies assets as held for sale when management concludes that the recognition criteria 
under IFRS 5 are satisfied. This conclusion involves management making assumptions and estimates about 
the fair value of the identified assets. It also includes judgement about the probability of the eventual sale 
being within time period allotted by IFRS 5.

Deferred Income Taxes
The Group accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on deductible or taxable temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts and tax bases of the assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured 
using substantially enacted tax rates expected to apply in the years in which the temporary differences 
are expected to reverse. If the estimates and assumptions are modified in the future, the Group may be 
required to reduce or increase the value of deferred tax assets or liabilities resulting in, where applicable, an 
income tax expense or recovery. The Group regularly evaluates deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Related Party Transactions
Rent was paid to companies controlled by officers, directors and members of their families in the ordinary 
course of operations and based on fair market value.

Risks and Uncertainties

Operating Results
EIL’s mix of businesses typically require significant financial resources, and there is no assurance that 
future revenues will be sufficient to generate the funds required to continue EIL’s business development 
and marketing activities. In certain markets, the Company competes with local, regional, national 
and international companies for work. With the experience of the Company’s operating subsidiaries, 
management believes it has developed systems, policies, and procedures to mitigate this risk.

Liquidity Requirements
The Group requires significant amounts of working capital in order to be able to operate. The Company’s 
contracts are primarily based upon firm prices and billing is generally performed on a monthly basis. 
Projects often involve changes or requests for extra work and although the Group endeavors to bill 
promptly for this extra work, any delay in issuing change orders can impact cash flows. Construction 
projects typically allow for the general contractor to withhold between five and ten percent of the Group’s 
total billings until the completion of the project. As a consequence, larger and longer-term projects can 
greatly increase capitalization requirements for working capital.

The Group’s ability to obtain additional capital is a significant factor in achieving its strategy of expansion 
in the construction industry. There can be no assurance that the current working capital of EIL will be 
sufficient to enable it to implement all of its objectives. Furthermore, the current credit contraction in 
the world’s financial markets may limit the Group’s ability to access credit in the event that it identifies a 
potential acquisition or some other business opportunity that would require a significant investment in 
resources. There can be no assurance that if and when EIL seeks equity or debt financing, it will be able to 
obtain the required funding on favourable commercial terms, or at all. Any such future financing may also 
result in additional dilution to existing shareholders.

EIL requires sufficient financing to fund its operations. Failure to obtain financing on a timely basis could 
cause missed acquisition opportunities, delays in expansion and may also impact ongoing operations.
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Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility that customers may experience financial difficulty and be unable to 
fulfill their commitments to the Group. Notwithstanding the Group’s current credit policies and practices, 
there can be no assurance that customers will remain able to fulfill their commitments to the Group which 
may have an adverse effect on the Group’s financial performance.

Interest Rate Risk
Fluctuations in interest rates will affect that portion of the Group’s debt that is subject to variable interest 
rates, and will also affect the prices for other financial instruments. Such fluctuations could have an adverse 
effect on the Group’s financial performance.

Foreign Exchange Risk
Rapid currency fluctuations can have a significant impact on un-hedged non-Canadian dollar denominated 
projects. The Group has exported some fabricated steel products over the years to the United States and 
the purchase of DSL and Petrofield have increased the percentage of revenue from the United States, but a 
majority of these contracts have been hedged with forward contracts to sell US dollars. 

Bonding Capacity
Some customers require performance bonds underwritten by insurance providers, or irrevocable letters of 
credit as a condition of contract award. However, there can be no assurance that the Group will be able to 
obtain such bonds or letters of credit.

Cost of Raw Material
The principal cost of raw material is structural steel and other steel products. These supply and pricing 
arrangements are negotiated directly with steel manufacturers or steel supply companies that buy and 
warehouse steel products. Where appropriate, the Group will endeavour to include an escalation clause for 
material costs in jobs being tendered in the industrial, commercial and institutional sector in each contract. 
In the absence of an escalation clause, the Group mitigates its risk, to the extent possible, through 
contracted buying arrangements or limitations on the length of time that bids can remain outstanding prior 
to acceptance. In the circumstance of volatility in the commodity price of steel, unexpected increases in 
steel prices which are not hedged by escalation clauses or similar means, may negatively impact margins 
on a particular job and therefore the company’s future results of operations or financial position.

Project Performance
Most of EIL’s sales contracts are fixed-price contracts resulting from competitive bids. When bidding on a 
project, the Group estimates its costs, including projected increases in the costs of labour, materials and 
services.

Despite these estimates, actual costs could vary from the estimated amounts. These variations could 
adversely affect the Group’s business. Any inability of the Group’s subsidiaries to execute customer 
projects in accordance with requirements, including adherence to completion timetables, may have a 
material adverse effect on the Group’s business, operations and prospects.

Percentage of Completion Accounting Method
The Group recognizes revenue from its fabrication and erection contracts using the percentage of 
completion accounting method, based on costs incurred as compared to projected costs. Estimated losses 
on contracts are immediately recognized. Revenue estimates are based on management assumptions 
supported by historical experience. There can be no assurance that these estimates made during the 
contract execution phase will not vary from the actual results measured at the completion of the contract.

Competitive Market
Competitors tend to be based in Western Canada and are virtually all privately or family owned 
businesses. The Group’s approach to competitive risk is to develop strong relationships with clients, 
increase the breadth of services offered and to broaden our geographic coverage to enhance service and 
competitiveness. From time to time, competitors out of the United States, Asia, Ontario and Quebec have 
bid on work and been awarded work in Western Canada.
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Incremental transportation costs, scheduling issues and quality standards have tended to make these 
options less attractive to owners and owners’ engineers.

Due to the competitive nature of the business, the Group must compete on price and quality of service. 
A significant portion of the Group’s business is to provide a contracted scope of work to clients on a 
fixed price or unit price basis. There can be no assurance that the fixed price commitment adequately 
recovers the full cost of providing the contracted scope of work. Nor can there be any assurance that the 
contracted scope of work is so clear as to prevent disagreements over the interpretation of what has been 
contracted for. Management is of the view that the Group’s experience in the industry provides it with the 
necessary expertise to resolve disputes that may arise in a manner that is satisfactory to the Group’s overall 
requirements.

Global Economic Environment
The current economic downturn has demonstrated that businesses and industries throughout the world are 
very tightly connected to each other. Thus, events seemingly unrelated to the Group, such as the recent 
extraordinary developments in global financial markets, may adversely affect the Group over the course of 
time. For example, the credit contraction in financial markets, combined with reduced economic activity, 
may adversely affect general contractors and other businesses that collectively constitute a significant 
portion of the Group’s customer base. As a result, these customers may need to reduce their purchases of 
the Group’s products or services, or the Group may experience greater difficulty in receiving payment for 
the products or services that these customers purchase from the Group. Any of these events, or any other 
events caused by turmoil in world financial markets, may have a material adverse effect on the Group’s 
business, operating results, and financial condition.

Non-residential Construction Activity in Western Canada
The demand for the Group’s products and services tends to fluctuate directly with non-residential 
construction activity. A decline in the demand for these products and services can occur if deteriorating 
economic conditions reduce non-residential capital expenditures which would have an adverse effect on 
the EIL’s business, results of operations, and financial condition. 

A large portion of EIL’s revenues are derived from large projects (including joint ventures) which do not 
occur on a regular basis and could generate fluctuations in corporate revenues.

EIL’s business is primarily influenced by the overall level of capital spending in the mining and oil and gas 
industries in Western Canada. Lower commodity prices results in lower corporate profits which provides 
less available funds for spending on capital projects. The Group’s activity level is therefore dependent on oil 
and gas prices and commodity prices.

Reliance on Key Personnel
The business activities of the Group involve a certain degree of risk that even a combination of experience, 
knowledge and diligence may not be able to overcome. Shareholders must rely on the ability, expertise, 
judgment, direction and integrity of the management of EIL. Success will be dependent on the services of 
a number of key personnel, including its executive officers and other key employees, the loss of any one 
of whom could have an adverse effect on its operations and business prospects. The Group feels that 
by being a publicly traded company it will have more flexibility than its private competitors to implement 
attractive incentive plans for key employees to attract and retain the necessary employees.

Labour Relations
The employment of skilled tradespersons in the field and shops is subject to multi-year, collective 
agreements with a variety of unions. The increasing shortage of skilled tradespersons is increasing the 
wage expectations and concessions of all fabricators and manufacturers, especially those companies that 
provide their services closest to the active markets, such as Alberta. The Group has six non-union shops, 
and seven unionized shops that are subject to their own collective agreements and three different collective 
agreements relating to the field erection business. EIL is at risk if there are labour disruptions relating to any 
of these collective agreements.



EMPIRE INDUSTRIES LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2012 - PAGE 18

Management feels the staggering and independence of each collective agreement mitigates the issue 
of work stoppage that may arise at any one location. The Group also believes it has fostered a positive 
relationship with its workers as is evidenced by zero work stoppages in over 40 years of operations.

Acquisitions
The Group may seek to expand its business through acquisitions and may divest underperforming or 
non-core businesses. Empire’s success depends, in part, upon management’s ability to identify such 
acquisition and divestiture opportunities and to negotiate favourable contractual terms. The Group’s ability 
to successfully integrate acquisitions into its operations could affect Empire’s financial results.

Technological Change
EIL assesses the “labour/capital” trade-off that is associated with the increased usage of software to 
enhance employee productivity and increase profitability. Management has historically invested in prudent 
capital expenditures designed to mitigate the increasing cost of labour and the historically tight supply 
of skilled tradespersons. To the extent that the Group is unable to continue to invest in technological 
advancements designed to enhance its competitive cost structure, it may have an adverse effect on the 
Company’s operations.

Environment/Regulatory
Environmental legislation is evolving in a manner expected to result in stricter standards and enforcement, 
larger fines and liability and potentially increased capital expenditures and operating costs. No assurance 
can be given that environmental laws will not result in an increase in the costs of the Group’s activities or 
otherwise adversely affect the Group’s financial condition, results of operations or prospects.

EIL maintains insurance consistent with industry practice to protect against losses due to sudden and 
accidental environmental contamination, accidental destruction of assets, and other operating accidents 
or disruption. The Group also has operational and emergency response procedures, and safety and 
environmental programs in place to reduce potential loss exposure. EIL believes that it is in substantial 
compliance, in all material respects, with all current environmental legislation and is taking such steps as it 
believes are prudent to ensure that compliance will be maintained.

Forward Looking Information
This MD&A contains certain “forward-looking statements.” All statements, other than statements of 
historical fact, that address activities, events or developments that the Company believes, expects or 
anticipates will or may occur in the future (including, without limitation, statements regarding financial 
and business prospects and financial outlook) are forward looking statements. These forward-looking 
statements reflect the current expectations or beliefs of the Group, based on information currently available 
to the Group. Forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties and assumptions 
that may cause the actual results of the Group to differ materially from those discussed in the forward-
looking statements and, even if such actual results are realized or substantially realized, there can be 
no assurance that they will have the expected consequences to, or effects on the Group. Factors that 
could cause actual results or events to differ materially from current expectations include, among other 
things, changes in general economic and market conditions, changes to regulations affecting the Group’s 
activities, and uncertainties relating to the availability and costs of financing needed in the future. Any 
forward-looking statement speaks only as at the date on which it is made and, except as may be required 
by applicable securities laws, the Group disclaims any intent or obligation to update any forward-looking 
statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or results or otherwise. Although the Group 
believes that the assumptions inherent in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, forward looking 
statements are not guarantees of future performance and, accordingly, undue reliance should not be put on 
such statements due to the inherent uncertainty therein.
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Future Changes in Accounting Standards

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
The amendments to IFRS 7 establish the disclosures required when offsetting financial assets and financial 
liabilities.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
IFRS 10 is the result of the IASB’s project to replace Standing Interpretations Committee 12, “Consolidation 
– Special Purpose Entities” and the consolidation requirements of IAS 27, “Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements.”  The new standard eliminates the current risk and rewards approach and establishes 
control as the single basis for determining the consolidation of an entity. The changes introduced by IFRS 
10 will require management to exercise significant judgement to determine which entities are controlled, 
and therefore are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirement that were in IAS 
27.  Under IFRS 10, an investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns 
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the 
investee. This principle applies to all investees, including structured entities.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
FRS 12 outlines the required disclosures for interests in subsidiaries and joint arrangements. The new 
standard requires disclosure of information that will assist financial statement users to evaluate the nature, 
risks and financial effects associated with an entity’s interests in subsidiaries and joint arrangements. One 
of the most significant changes introduced by IFRS 12 is that an entity is now required to disclose the 
judgments made to determine whether it controls another entity.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
IFRS 13 provides a common definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under 
IFRS and enhances the disclosures required for fair value measurements. The standard applies where fair 
value measurements are required and does not require new fair value measurements.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 
The amendments to IAS 1 are effective for fiscal years that begin on or after July 1, 2012. It requires 
companies preparing financial statements to group together items within other comprehensive income 
(“OCI”) on the basis of whether they may be reclassified to the profit or loss section of the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. The amendments also reaffirm existing requirements that items in OCI and profit 
or loss should be presented as either a single statement or two consecutive statements.

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
The amendments to IAS 28 prescribe the accounting for investments and sets out the requirements for the 
application of the equity method when accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures. 
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Outlook

In addition to other sections of the Group’s report, this section contains forward-looking information and 
actual outcomes may differ materially from those expressed or implied therein. For more information, see 
the section titled “Forward-Looking Information” in this MD&A.

The Group’s backlog remains strong as the economy strengthens and Empire’s contract awards increase. 
At December 31, 2012, the Group’s backlog was $92 million compared to $43 million as at December 31, 
2011. 

The Group expects to continue to improve its operating performance in 2013 as a result of the following:

• the Group has increased its backlog of high value added attraction products to be manufactured; 

• our hydrovac truck manufacturing operation continues to improve its throughput and profitability; and

• our Chinese associate in Guangdong Province, was certified by the Canadian Welding Bureau in late 
   2012 and will begin to produce sub-components of our attractions destined for China, further increasing 
   our manufacturing capacity and supply chain capabilities globally.

The Group’s subsidiary Dynamic Attractions Ltd. was officially launched in November of 2011 and 
continues to increase the pipeline of global prospects it is pursuing. The Group invested in producing a 
world-class product line of media based attractions, and the growing backlog of contract awards and 
pipeline of prospects is a key indicator of success. 

Dynamic Structures continues to be awarded and deliver world-class and large-scale contracts in the 
theme park attraction business. Its backlog is very strong and the continued awards are reflective of high 
quality and capability in this area.

The Group’s Hydrovac Truck division continues to operate at full capacity and has a strong backlog with 
delivery dates extending out 6-9 months and during 2012 the Group has increased its throughput capacity 
and continues to identify opportunities for throughput enhancement.

The Group’s unique aboriginal partnership with the Athabasca Chipewyan First Nation in Fort McMurray is 
called ACE Industrial Services. ACE continued profitable operations in 2012 and we expect its growth in 
the outsourced maintenance services market of Canada’s oil sands stand it in good stead for the years to 
come as the oil sands production steadily grows above the current level of two million barrels per day of 
production. 

The past four years have been challenging for the Group. The repositioning of the Group into higher margin, 
engineered products and a low cost, high value added provider of fabricated steel will enable the Group to 
generate sustainable future profitability. Profits generated will be sheltered from tax through the availability 
of $22 million of loss carry forwards.

The Company remains focused on capitalizing its balance sheet in a way to provide adequate working 
capital to sustain a growing volume of business, especially internationally. Our international sales will be 
limited until such time as this initiative is accomplished.
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Management’s Report
To the Shareholders of Empire Industries Ltd.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Empire Industries Ltd. contained in this annual 
report, including the notes thereto, have been prepared by management in accordance with the Company’s 
accounting policies, that are in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). In 
addition, the financial information contained elsewhere in this Annual Report is consistent with the financial 
statements.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the financial statements included in this annual report. The Audit 
Committee reviewed the contents of the consolidated financial statements with management and the 
independent auditor prior to their approval by the Board of Directors. The independent auditor discussed 
their audit work with the Committee.

Management has overall responsibility for internal controls and maintains accounting control systems 
designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are properly authorized, assets safeguarded 
and that the financial records form a reliable base for the preparation of accurate and timely financial 
information.

Guy Nelson, MBA, B.Comm.   Michael Martin, CA
Chief Executive Officer    Chief Financial Officer

April 29, 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Shareholders of Empire Industries Ltd.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Empire Industries Ltd. and its subsidiaries, which 
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 
2011 and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss), changes in shareholders’ equity 
and cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the 
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Empire Industries Ltd. and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 
2011, and their financial performance and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 in the consolidated financial statements which 
indicates that the Company is in breach of certain debt covenants. These conditions, along with other 
matters as set forth in Note 2, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant 
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Winnipeg, Manitoba
April 24, 2013      Chartered Accountants

2500-201 Portage Avenue, Winnipeg, Manitoba, R3B 3K6, Phone: (204) 775-4531, 1 (877) 500-0795
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

 (1) Included in revenue are foreign exchange gains of $147 for the year ended December 31, 2012 and $207 for 
      the year ended December 31, 2011
 (2) Cost of sales including depreciation and amortization was ($73,239) for the year ended December 31, 2012 
      and ($51,931) for the year ended December 31, 2011   
    
See accompanying notes
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Guarantees and contingencies [note 31]
Going concern basis of presentation [note 2]
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

On behalf of the Board of Directors:
        Director    Director
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

See accompanying notes
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011
Amounts reported in thousands (000’s) except per share amounts 

1.

2.

Corporate information
Empire Industries Ltd. (“Empire”) designs, fabricates, manufactures, erects and sells proprietary 
engineered products throughout the world. Key customer sectors include the entertainment industry, 
natural resource infrastructure, manufacturing, and processing industries, excavation industry, and 
the government sector. Empire also provides fabrication and installation services to industrial and 
infrastructure markets, primarily in western Canada as well as participating in the market for oil sands 
maintenance services through its 49% ownership of its aboriginal partnership. 

Empire Industries Ltd. is listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange’s venture exchange trading under “EIL” 
and is incorporated under the Business Corporations Act of Alberta, Canada. The head office is located 
at 717 Jarvis Avenue, Winnipeg Manitoba, R2W 3B4.

The consolidated financial statements were recommended for approval by the Audit Committee on April 
24, 2013 and were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on April 29, 2013.

Basis of presentation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared for the year ended December 31, 2012 and include 
the results for the comparative year ended December 31, 2011. The consolidated financial statements 
have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments which are 
measured at fair value as disclosed. Included in these consolidated financial statements are the 
accounts for Empire and all of its subsidiaries (the “Group”). These consolidated financial statements 
have been prepared in Canadian dollars which is the functional currency of the Group.

Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the international Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Going concern basis of presentation
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management on a going concern 
basis in accordance with IFRS. The going concern basis of presentation assumes that the Group will 
continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to realize its assets and discharge its 
liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business. If the going concern basis of accounting 
is not appropriate for these consolidated financial statements, then adjustments would be necessary 
in the carrying value of assets and liabilities, the reported revenues and expenses and the statement of 
financial position classifications used and such adjustments could be material.

The Group’s debt obligations are described in notes 15, 16, 17 and 18, some of which are subject 
to financial covenants that are based on recognized assets and liabilities, operating results and the 
amount of debt obligations outstanding. The Group was not in compliance with certain financial 
covenants at December 31, 2012 (note 26).  In addition, the Group’s ability to maintain compliance with 
its other financial covenants in the future is dependent upon various factors, some of which are outside 
the control of the Group. 

Based on uncertainties associated with the Group’s ability to meet its current operating projections 
which could be impacted by, but not limited to, negative cash flow from operations, the possibility 
of higher interest rates, commodity price increases, curtailment of industrial or institutional capital 
spending, credit losses, access to bonding or a combination of these factors, the Group may be 
unable to achieve compliance with its financial covenants in the future. Failure to maintain compliance 
with financial covenants under the Group’s credit facilities could result in default, permitting its lender 
to demand all amounts outstanding under the lending agreement. These circumstances may lend 
significant doubt to the ability of the Group to meet its obligations as they come due and accordingly, 
the use of accounting principles applicable to a going concern may not be appropriate.
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3.

The Group is proactively looking at all available alternatives in implementing the Group’s plans. The 
Group continues to aggressively pursue strategies to improve operating results, cash flows and capital 
structure in order to ensure the availability of funds to continue to meet its obligations. However, there 
can be no assurance as to their outcome or success.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Empire Industries Ltd. and its wholly 
owned subsidiaries, Empire Iron Works Ltd., 0812484 BC Ltd (formerly George Third & Son Ltd.), 
Dynamic Attractions Ltd. and Dynamic Attractions Inc.. The consolidated financial statements 
furthermore include subsidiaries of the wholly-owned subsidiaries: KWH Constructors Inc. (WS, USA); 
and 1366377 Texas Inc. (formerly Tornado Technologies, Inc., TX, USA). The Group equity accounts for 
its investments in ACE Industrial Services and its subsidiaries Lemax Machine and Welding Inc. and 
Bartan Machine and Welding Co Ltd. (AB, Canada “ACE” – 49%) and Qiguang Dynamic Structures Ltd 
(Dongguan, Guangdong P.R. China “QDSL” 45%). 

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group 
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. The financial 
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group, using 
consistent accounting policies. All inter-company balances, income and expenses and unrealized gains 
and losses resulting from inter-company transactions are eliminated in full.

Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is 
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments and liabilities incurred or assumed 
at the date of exchange. Acquisition costs for business combinations are expensed and included in 
selling, general and administrative expenses. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent 
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at fair value at the date of 
acquisition.

Investment in associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence (i.e. the power to participate in 
the financial and operating policy decisions of the associate) but not control or joint control.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. The share of income (loss) of 
associates is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (loss) and its share of 
other comprehensive income (loss) of associates is included in other comprehensive income (loss).

Foreign currency translation
The reporting currency for the consolidated financial statements is the Canadian dollar. For subsidiaries 
in the Group whose functional currency is not the Canadian dollar, their results are translated into 
Canadian dollars as follows:

• assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian dollars at the exchange rate in effect on the 
   statement of financial position date,
• results of operations are translated into Canadian dollars at the average monthly exchange rate;
• foreign exchange differences arising from exchange rate fluctuations are accounted for in 
   comprehensive income (loss) and equity.
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Foreign currency transactions are translated into Canadian dollars at the exchange rate in effect at the 
date of the transaction. Gains or losses resulting from the translations are recognized in comprehensive 
income (loss). Monetary items are translated at the Canadian dollar spot rate as of the reporting 
date.  Exchange differences from monetary items are recognized in comprehensive income (loss).  
Nonmonetary items that are not carried at fair value are translated using the exchange rates as at the 
dates of the initial transaction. 

Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates 
at the date when the fair value is determined.

Revenue recognition
Revenues are recorded according to IAS 11, “Construction Contracts”, when the criteria are satisfied; 
otherwise, revenues are recorded in accordance with IAS 18, “Revenue”. A construction contract is 
a contract specifically negotiated for the construction of an asset or a combination of assets that are 
closely interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design, technology and function or their ultimate 
purpose or use.

Revenue from construction contracts is determined on the percentage of completion method, based on 
the ratio of costs incurred to date over estimated total costs. Contract costs include all direct material 
and labour costs. Provisions are recorded for anticipated contract losses as soon as they are evident.  
Contract revenues and costs are adjusted to reflect change orders that have been approved as to both 
price and scope. In circumstances where significant advance purchases under a contract, such as 
materials, would result in a materially higher percentage of completion estimate for sales than would be 
indicated by other measures such as labour hours, management adjusts the percentage of completion 
to the lower level indicated by the alternative measure.

Revenues from the design, fabrication and installation of equipment are recorded when the products 
are completed and accepted by the customer or the services are rendered and collection is reasonably 
assured. Any foreseeable losses on contracts are charged to operations at the time they become 
evident. Revenues from the sale of used equipment are recognized when title passes from the Group 
to its customers and collection is reasonably assured. Revenues from operating leases are recognized 
over the lease term including estimated renewal periods.

Income taxes
Tax expense is comprised of two components; current tax expense and deferred tax expense.

Current tax 
Recoverable tax assets or current tax liabilities represent the tax authorities’ obligations or claims for 
prior or current periods which are not received or paid at the end of the reporting period. Current tax is 
based on taxable income which differs from accounting income by definition. Recoverable tax assets or 
current tax liabilities are measured using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted 
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is determined based on differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the calculation of taxable 
income. Deferred tax assets or liabilities are measured based on tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period, and that are expected to apply to the period 
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled.
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Deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized for all deductible or taxable temporary differences 
arising if it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that 
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference(s) can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to offset 
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 
entity and the same taxation authority.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified 
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather 
than through continuing use. 

This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group 
is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, 
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date 
of classification.

In the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the reporting period, and of the comparable 
period, income and expenses from discontinued operations are reported separately from income 
and expenses from continuing operations, down to the level of profit after taxes. In the consolidated 
statement of financial position, non-current assets held for sale have been separately identified. 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated 
or amortized.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of any accumulated depreciation, impairment 
losses and subsequent reversals (if any). Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

  Buildings       25 years
  Machinery and equipment (“M&E”)    3 to 15 years
  Vehicles       1 to 7 years
  Office furniture and equipment (“Office Equip”)  3 to 10 years
  Parking lots      10 years
  Leasehold improvements     Over the lease period

The assets’ useful lives, residual values and methods of depreciation of assets are reviewed annually, 
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.  

Leases
Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to 
ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the 
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.  Lease payments are 
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant 
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  Finance charges are recognized in finance costs 
in the statement of comprehensive income (loss).
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Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset.  However, if there is no reasonable 
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated 
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income (loss) on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time, which the Group considers to be 12 months or more, 
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets.  All 
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and 
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

Impairment of non-financial assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that the non-
current assets have been impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 
is determined. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss when the carrying amount of the asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. 

If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group determines the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. The recoverable amount 
of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In the measurement of 
the value in use, estimates of future cash flows are discounted at their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the asset for which estimates of cash flows have not been adjusted.

Cash and cash equivalents
All highly liquid temporary cash investments with an original maturity of three months or less when 
purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.  

Inventory
Inventory is comprised of raw materials, work in progress and finished goods. Inventory is valued at the 
lower of cost and net realizable value, using an average cost basis. Net realizable value is the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated 
costs necessary to make the sale. When the circumstances that previously caused inventories to be 
written down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in selling prices, 
the amount of the write down previously recorded is reversed.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently recognized 
according to their classification. The classification depends on the intention with which the financial 
instruments were acquired and their characteristics. Unless specific circumstances permitted under 
IFRS are present, the classification is not modified after initial recognition.

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss [“FVTPL”]
Financial instruments classified as assets or liabilities held for trading are recognized at fair value at 
each balance sheet date, and any change in the fair value is reflected in profit or loss in the period 
during which these changes take place.
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Loans and receivables and other financial liabilities
Financial instruments classified as loans and receivables and other financial liabilities are accounted 
for at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest income or expense is included in 
profit or loss over the expected life of the financial instrument.

Available for sale assets
Financial instruments classified as available-for-sale are recorded at fair value, and the gains/losses 
resulting from the revaluation at the end of each period are recognized in other comprehensive 
income (loss). Securities classified as available-for-sale and whose fair value cannot be recorded in 
a reliable manner are recognized at cost. Available for sale securities are reduced to fair value when 
it is necessary to reflect a permanent decline in value. Upon derecognition, all cumulative gains or 
losses previously recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are reflected in 
comprehensive income (loss).

Foreign currency forward contracts
The foreign currency forward contracts are not designated as hedging instruments for accounting 
purposes. These derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value and any subsequent 
change in fair value is recognized in income (loss).

Convertible debentures
The proceeds from the offerings of convertible debentures are recognized as a liability component and 
an equity component, which represents the residual amount obtained after deducting the fair value 
of the financial liability from the fair value of the convertible debentures issued. The fair value of the 
financial liability is estimated by comparing the stated interest rate on the debentures to the prevailing 
market rates for non-convertible debt with all other terms and conditions consistent to the underlying 
debenture. 

Warrants
Warrants granted in connection with issuing common shares and convertible debentures are recorded 
at fair value on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model or other appropriate 
measure. The component of the capital raised attributable to the fair value of the warrants is recorded 
in the corresponding period to contributed surplus. Any consideration paid by the warrant holder on 
exercise of the warrant is credited to share capital and contributed surplus is decreased.

Transaction costs
Transaction costs related to financial instruments that are not classified as assets and liabilities at fair 
value through profit and loss, are recognized on the statement of financial position as an adjustment 
to the cost of the financial instrument upon initial recognition and amortized using the effective interest 
rate method. Deferred financing expenses related to revolving loans and recognized under non-current 
assets are amortized over the financing period.

Earnings per share
The computation of earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the period. Diluted earnings per share are computed in a similar way to basic earnings per 
share except that the weighted average shares outstanding are increased to include additional shares 
assuming the exercise of share options, share appreciation rights and convertible debt options, if 
dilutive.

Share-based compensation plans
Employees of the Group may receive remuneration in the form of stock options. Awards granted under 
the Group’s stock option plan are recognized in comprehensive income (loss) using the fair value 
method. 
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4.

Equity settled transactions
The cost of equity settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in other 
capital reserves, in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are 
fulfilled.

When options and other share-based compensation awards are exercised or exchanged, the amounts 
previously credited to contributed surplus are reversed and credited to shareholder’s equity. The 
amount of cash, if any, received from participants is also credited to shareholder’s equity.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of 
diluted earnings per share.

Reportable segments
A reportable business segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities 
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to 
transactions with any of the Group’s other segments. All inter-segment transactions are accounted 
for at fair value. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group’s Chief 
Executive Officer to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess 
its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. The Group has two main 
reportable segments; Steel Fabrication Services and Manufacturing.

Post-retirement benefit plans
The Group contributes to retirement savings plans subject to maximum limits per employee. The Group 
accounts for such defined contributions as an expense in the period in which the contributions are 
required to be made.  The Group does not have any defined benefit plans.  

Investment tax credits
Federal and provincial investment tax credits are accounted for as a reduction to the corresponding 
expenditures in the period in which the credits are earned and when there is reasonable assurance that 
the credits can be used to recover taxes. 

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and 
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results could differ from those judgements, estimates and 
assumptions. The items whose actual results could differ significantly from those judgements, estimates 
and assumptions are described below.

Revenue recognition
The percentage of completion method and the revenue to be recognized are determined on the basis 
of estimates for which the Group has implemented an internal financial budgeting and reporting system 
which relies on historical experience. The Group reviews the estimates of contract revenue and contract 
costs as of each reporting date. Contract losses are recognized as soon as they are identified.

Cash generating units
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash inflows. Management determines which groups of assets are capable of 
generating cash inflows that are largely independent of other operations within the Group.

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Given the nature of business and the credit terms provided to customers, estimates and judgements are 
inherent in the on-going assessment of the recoverability of some accounts receivable.
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The Group maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to reflect expected credit losses. The Group 
is not able to predict changes in the financial conditions of its customers and the Group’s judgement 
related to the recoverability of accounts receivable may be materially impacted if the financial condition 
of the Group’s customers deteriorates.

Valuation of inventory
Estimates and judgements are inherent in the determination of the net realizable value of inventories.  
The cost of inventories may not be fully recoverable if they are damaged or if the selling price of the 
inventory is less than its cost. The Group regularly reviews its inventory quantities and reduces the cost 
attributed to inventory no longer deemed to be fully recoverable. Estimates related to the determination 
of net realizable value may be impacted by a number of factors including market conditions.

Share-based payments
The Group measures the cost of share-based payments to employees by reference to the fair value 
of the equity instruments at the date on which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share-based 
payment transactions requires determining the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent 
on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires the determination of the most 
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and 
dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating 
fair value of share-based payment transactions are disclosed in note 19. 

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group’s impairment test is based on value in use calculations that use a discounted cash flow 
model. The cash flows are derived from the forecast and do not include restructuring activities that the 
Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that may enhance the performance of 
the cash generating unit being tested. The calculation is sensitive to the discount rate applied as well as 
the expected future cash inflows.  

Useful lives of key property, plant and equipment
The depreciation method and useful lives reflect the pattern in which management expects the asset’s 
future economic benefits to be consumed by the Group. Useful lives, depreciation methods, and 
residual values are reviewed periodically and, historically, changes to estimates of remaining useful 
lives have not been material. Refer to note 3 for the estimated useful lives. The impact of changes in 
estimates on the current period and the expected impact on future periods is outline in note 11.

Assets held for sale
The Group classifies assets as held for sale when management concludes that the recognition criteria 
under IFRS 5 are satisfied. This conclusion involves management making assumptions and estimates 
about the fair value of the identified assets. It also includes judgement about the probability of the 
eventual sale being within time period allotted by IFRS 5.

Deferred Taxes
The Group accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on deductible or taxable temporary differences between 
the carrying amounts and tax bases of the assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
measured using substantially enacted tax rates expected to apply in the years in which the temporary 
differences are expected to reverse. If the estimates and assumptions are modified in the future, the 
Group may be required to reduce or increase the value of deferred tax assets or liabilities resulting 
in, where applicable, an income tax expense or recovery. The Group regularly evaluates deferred tax 
assets and liabilities.
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5. Standards issued but not yet effective
As of January 1, 2013, the Company will be required to adopt certain standards and amendments 
issued by the IASB as described below, for which the Company is currently assessing the impact.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
The amendments to IFRS 7 establish the disclosures required when offsetting financial assets and 
financial liabilities.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
IFRS 10 is the result of the IASB’s project to replace Standing Interpretations Committee 12, 
“Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities” and the consolidation requirements of IAS 27, “Consolidated 
and Separate Financial Statements.” The new standard eliminates the current risk and rewards 
approach and establishes control as the single basis for determining the consolidation of an entity. The 
changes introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgment to determine 
which entities are controlled, and therefore are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared 
with the requirements that were in IAS 27. Under IFRS 10, an investor controls an investee when it is 
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to 
affect those returns through its power over the investee. This principle applies to all investees, including 
structured entities.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
IFRS 12 outlines the required disclosures for interests in subsidiaries and joint arrangements. The 
new standard requires disclosure of information that will assist financial statement users to evaluate 
the nature, risks and financial effects associated with an entity’s interests in subsidiaries and joint 
arrangements. One of the most significant changes introduced by IFRS 12 is that an entity is now 
required to disclose the judgments made to determine whether it controls another entity.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 
IFRS 13 provides a common definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value 
under IFRS and enhances the disclosures required for fair value measurements. The standard applies 
where fair value measurements are required and does not require new fair value measurements.

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 
The amendments to IAS 28 prescribe the accounting for investments and sets out the requirements for 
the application of the equity method when accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 
The amendments to IAS 1 are effective for fiscal years that begin on or after July 1, 2012. It requires 
companies preparing financial statements to group together items within other comprehensive income 
(“OCI”) on the basis of whether they may be reclassified to the profit or loss section of the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income. The amendments also reaffirm existing requirements that items in OCI and 
profit or loss should be presented as either a single statement or two consecutive statements.
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6.

7.

8.

Income (loss) per share

Income (loss) per share for the year ended December 31

Basic earnings (loss) per share are derived by dividing net the earnings (loss) for the period by the 
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. The effect of potentially 
dilutive securities (“in-the-money” executive stock options, “in-the-money” warrants and convertible 
debentures) are excluded if they are anti-dilutive.

Accounts receivable

Holdbacks from the construction contracts are $2,098 as at December 31, 2012 ($1,283 as at 
December 31, 2011).

Construction contracts
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9.

10.

Inventories

Inventories are comprised of the following

During the year, the Group recorded inventory write-downs of $281 (2011 $198). There were no 
reversals of prior period inventory write downs. The amount of inventories recognized as an expense 
within cost of goods sold is $11,093 (2011 - $9,723).

Foreign currency forward contracts

The Company utilizes forward currency contracts to provide protection against foreign exchange rate 
movements on long-term sales contracts. These contracts have not been designated as hedges for 
financial reporting purposes. The Company’s policy is to not utilize derivative financial instruments for 
trading or speculative purposes.

Changes in fair values of forward currency forward contracts during the periods ended December 31, 
2012 and 2011 are as follows:
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Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation for 2012 consisted of $1,070 from continuing operations ($1,595 for the year ended 
December 31, 2011) and $5 from discontinued operations ($306 for the year ended December 31, 
2011). Fully amortized items of property, plant and equipment with a historical cost of $2,102 are still 
in use by the Group. The Group classified items of property plant and equipment with a historical cost 
of $844 and accumulated amortization of $163 as held for sale at the date of the statement of financial 
position.  

During 2012 the Group revised its estimates of the useful lives of certain items of property plant & 
equipment. The impact of the change in the estimated useful lives of these items was a reduction in 
depreciation expense of $192. Because the Group uses straight-line depreciation methods, the Group 
expects the current estimates to have the same impact on depreciation expense in subsequent periods.
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Investment in associates

The Group has a 49% interest in Athabasca Chipewyan Empire Industrial Services Ltd. (“ACE”), Fort 
McMurray, Canada, which is involved in the steel fabrication and installation business and provides 
multi trade industrial construction as well as maintenance services. The Group’s interest in ACE 
includes its wholly owned subsidiaries, Lemax Machine and Welding Inc. and Bartan Machine and 
Welding Co. Ltd.  ACE is a private entity that is not listed on any public exchange.

The Group has a 45% interest in Dongguan Qiguang Dynamic Steel Structures Ltd (“QDSL”), in 
Dongguan, Guangdong P.R. China which is involved in the steel fabrication and installation business in 
China.  QDSL is a private entity and is not listed on any public exchange. The Group’s share of equity 
earnings will be applied to the principal of the limited recourse loan until such time as the principal 
is repaid in full (note 17). In addition to the equity loss record by the Group during the year, due to 
uncertainties about future operating results, the Group assessed the current fair value of the investment 
at $nil for the time being and as a result recorded an impairment charge of $309 as December 31, 2012.
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The Group’s share of the assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and 
income and expenses of ACE and QDSL for the period ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, which is 
included in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method, are as follows:
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The Group has outstanding long-term advances to ACE Industrial Services Ltd. of $363 (2011 - $341).  
The advances accrue interest at 8% per annum with no specified repayment terms. During the year, the 
Group earned $22 (2011 - $27) in interest income from ACE Industrial Services Ltd.

Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets consist of:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
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Bank indebtedness and bank operating lines
The Company’s cash balance of $25 (December 31, 2011 - $642) represents funds on deposit. 

At December 31, 2012, the Company had total draws on its bank operating lines of credit of $2,883 
($9,465 as at December 31, 2011). The Company has an overdraft facility with Canadian Western Bank 
(“CWBank Overdraft Facility”) in the amount of $7,000 ($10,000 as at December 31, 2011). Advances 
on the facility are payable on demand and bear interest at prime plus 2.75%. The CWBank Overdraft 
Facility is secured by general security agreements providing a first security interest in all present and 
after-acquired property and a $25,000 demand debenture providing the bank with fixed and floating 
charges on all assets of Empire Industries Ltd. and Empire Iron Works Ltd.

Long-term debt
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16.

CWBank Term Loan #1 bears interest at 6.5% per annum, due March 4, 2025, renewable March 4, 2015 
with monthly payments of $26. CWBank Term Loan #2 bore interest at 6.5% per annum and was due 
March 4, 2015 with monthly payments of $88. CWBank Term Loan #2 was repaid in full in April of 2012.  
The Group was not in compliance with certain financial covenants as at December 31, 2012 as well as 
the prior period, the result of which, requires the entire balance of Term Loan # 1 to be classified as a 
current liability. The Group has recorded $224 of the balance of long-term debt as current as it is due to 
be settled in the next twelve months and $1,386 has also been recorded in the financial statements as a 
current liability.

The CWBank Term Loans are secured by general security agreements providing a first security interest 
in all present and after-acquired property and a $25,000 demand debenture providing the bank with 
fixed and floating charges on assets of the Group. 

Other finance lease is for shop equipment that bears interest at 6.75% with monthly payment of $1 due 
February 2017 and secured by the equipment being leased with a net book value of $50.
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Principal amounts due on long-term debt in the current year and each of the next five years and 
thereafter and interest on finance leases are as follows:

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017 and thereafter
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$ 224
 238
 1,138
 8
 2
 
$ 1,610

Notes payable and limited recourse loan

The related parties as noted above are officers and/or directors of Empire Industries Ltd. and/or its 
wholly owned subsidiaries. During the period, interest of $nil (2011 - $nil) was paid to these related 
parties. Total interest expense to the related parties amounted to $nil (2011 - $335).

The limited recourse loan was issued on November 14, 2011 in the amount of $711 USD and the 
proceeds were used to fund the Group’s 45% investment in Dongguan Qiguang Dynamic Steel 
Structures Limited (“QDSL”) in Dongguan, Guangdong, P.R. China (note 16). The loan bears interest 
at 10% per annum payable quarterly. Security for the loan for QiGuang Investment (HK) Limited is 
restricted to the Group’s shares of QDSL. There is no term on the loan and the agreed method of 
principle payments for the loan is restricted only to the Group’s share of the equity earnings of QDSL.  
Total interest expense of $83 has been accrued on the limited recourse loan (2011 - $nil) and is 
recorded in accounts payable. 
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18.

19.

Convertible debentures
The Group has issued two tranches of subordinate convertible debentures with a total face value of 
$1,060.  These convertible debentures are unsecured and subordinated and are convertible into Empire 
Industries Ltd. common shares at a conversion price of $0.10.  The terms and conditions for each 
tranche of debentures issued are as follows:

• Tranche # 1 with face value of $560 with an annual coupon interest rate of 10% payable annually on 
   December 31. The debenture matures on February 13, 2016. Interest of $56 was accrued at 
   December 31, 2012 and recorded in accounts payable. At December 31, 2012 the fair value of this 
   tranche is $493 (December 31, 2011 - $478).
• Tranche # 2 with a face value of $500 with an annual coupon interest rate of 15% payable quarterly 
   45 days after each calendar quarter ended provided that the Group is in compliance its financial 
   covenants. In the event that the Group is not in compliance with one or more of its financial 
   covenants, the interest is accrued. At December 31, 2012 interest of $75 has been accrued and 
   recorded in accounts payable. The debenture matures on December 28, 2016. At December 31, 2012 
   the fair value of this tranche is $436 (December 31, 2011 - $425).

The fair value of the subordinated convertible debentures at December 31, 2012 is $929 (December 
31, 2011 - $903) and is recorded at amortized cost. Fair value was estimated by comparing the face 
value of the debentures to the prevailing market rates for similar non-convertible debt instruments. The 
residual value of $157 is separately recorded in equity.  

Share capital

Common shares

Authorized
The Group is permitted to issue an unlimited number of common shares without nominal or par value 
and an unlimited number of preferred shares. The preferred shares may be issued in one or more 
series, and the Directors are authorized to fix the number of shares in each series and to determine the 
designation, rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to the shares of each series.

During 2011 the Group closed the private placements of 102,000,000 common shares at a price of 
$0.05 per share for gross proceeds of $5,100. 72,000,000 common share purchase warrants were 
issued in conjunction with the common shares purchased. Each full warrant entitles the holder to buy 
one common share at an exercise price of $0.10 per share.
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Warrants
During the 2011, warrants were issued in connection with a private placement of shares and in 
connection with one of the convertible debentures raised. 42,000,000 issued shares came with a full 
common share purchase warrant while 60,000,000 issued shares came with one half of a common 
share purchase warrant. Each full warrant allows the holder to purchase a common share of the Group 
for $0.10, during a period of 24 months following closing. An additional 5,000,000 warrants were issued 
in conjunction with the Group’s December 29, 2011 convertible debenture issue. Each warrant entitles 
the holder to purchase one common share of the Group for $0.10 and is exercisable for 36 months from 
the date of issue.  In 2012, no new warrants were issued and a no warrants expired. Subsequent to 
December 31, 2012, 20,000,000 warrants have expired.

A summary of the Group’s warrants as at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 and changes 
during the periods then ended follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued...

 

The warrants are recorded at fair value, which the Group has estimated at $nil as at December 31, 
2012. Securities legislation restricts the minimum exercise price of warrants to $0.10 per common share 
irrespective of the market price of the common shares of the Group. The impact of the restriction is that 
fair value estimates from conventional and accepted Black-Scholes pricing models are not reasonable 
or appropriate to property reflect the underlying transactions, accordingly management assessed the 
fair value at $nil.  

Stock Options
The Group maintains a stock option plan for the benefit of officers, directors, key employees and 
consultants of the Group. At December 31, 2011 the Group was permitted to issue up to a maximum 
of 19,323,961 stock options, being 10% of the outstanding common shares. A summary of the Group’s 
options as at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 and changes to the periods then ended are 
as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued...

20.

21.

The fair value associated with the options granted was calculated using the Black-Scholes model for 
option valuation. The options granted in 2011 were granted in one issuance vesting over three years 
from the date of grant. The volatility assumed for the options granted is 139%. The risk-free interest rate 
assumed for the options was 2.06%. The annual pre-vest forfeiture rate which is calculated based on 
historical data is estimated at 9.58%. The market price at the date of grant was $0.06 per share. The 
fair value of the options granted is $279.

Cost of sales

Selling and administrative expenses
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22.

23.

24.

Other income (loss)

Finance costs

Income tax expense (recovery)

The major components of tax expense (recovery) are as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued...

The reconciliation between income tax expense (recovery) and the product of accounting profit 
multiplied by the combined federal and provincial statutory income tax rate is as follows:

The amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities in respect of each type of temporary difference and in 
respect of each type of unused tax losses and unused tax credits is as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued...

The amount of deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, and unused tax credits for which 
no deferred tax asset is recognized are as follows:

The unused tax losses presented above expire as follows:

The unused tax credits presented above expire as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued...

25. Operating segments
A description of the Company’s business segments, Steel Fabrication services and Manufacturing are 
included in note 3. Revenue recognition is not consistent between the two segments as all revenues 
are recognized in the Steel Fabrication services segment are recognized in accordance with IAS 11 – 
Construction Contracts. Revenue recognition in the Manufacturing segment is in accordance with both 
IAS 11 and IAS 18 depending the individual circumstances.
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26.

The following table breaks down the sales by geographical region: 

All non-current assets of the Group are located in Canada. 

Capital disclosure and management
The Group’s objective when managing its long-term capital structure is to strive for a long-term 
manageable level of long-term funded debt to total capitalization. The Group sets the amount of capital 
in proportion to risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light 
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to 
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new shares, sell redundant or non-core 
assets or borrow through the issue of long-term debt.

Long-term funded debt is defined as long term debt, proceeds receivable from the sale of assets and 
non-subordinated notes payable. Tangible net worth includes shareholders’ equity and subordinated 
debt such as subordinated notes payable and limited recourse loans and convertible debentures, less 
the value of intangible assets.

The Group’s strategy during the period, which was unchanged from the prior period, was to maintain 
its ability to secure access to financing at a reasonable cost. There are external restrictions to capital as 
lending limits are based on asset availability and financing agreements are impacted by covenants.

The Group was not in compliance certain financial covenants as at the periods listed above.
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27.

28.

Discontinued operations and divestitures
During 2012, the Group made the decision to cease operating its bulk material handling division in 
Welland Ontario (“Ward Facility”) and undertake to sell the assets. The Group has recorded the assets 
of the disposal group at a fair value of $681 and has separately identified them on the statement of 
financial position. The Group has interested buyers for the assets and is considering them subsequent 
to the date of the statement of financial position. The Group has accordingly reported the results of the 
Ward Facility as discontinued operations in its consolidated statement of comprehensive income (loss) 
for the period ending December 31, 2012 as well as for the comparative period ending December 31, 
2011 which includes an impairment loss of $267 recorded to value the assets of the disposal group 
at fair value. The results from discontinued operations of the disposal group have been shown in the 
manufacturing segment in note 25.  Results from business units discontinued by the Group prior to 
2012 have also been reported in discontinued operations.

Financial instruments and risk management

Fair value of financial instruments
The Group has established the following classification:

• Cash and equivalents, bank indebtedness and foreign currency forward contracts are classified under 
   “Asset or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss”.
• Notes receivable and Available for sale investments are classified as “Available for Sale”
• Accounts receivable including related party and other are classified as “Loans and receivables”
• Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, bank operating lines, convertible debentures, notes payable, 
   subordinated notes payable and limited recourse loan and long-term debt are classified as “Other 
   Financial Liabilities”   

Fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss if they are acquired for selling or 
repurchasing in the near term. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued...

 Loans and receivables
The carrying amounts of the financial instruments approximate their fair value due to their short-term 
maturity and the prevailing interest rates of these instruments, which are comparable to those of the 
market.

Available for sale
Bid quoted prices on the statement of financial position date are used to establish the fair value due of 
investments for which active markets exist.

The fair values of the other investments for which no active markets exist are carried at cost as no 
reliable fair value information is readily available.

Other financial liabilities
The carrying amounts of financial instruments approximate their fair values due to their short-term 
maturity and the prevailing interest rates of these instruments, which are comparable to those of the 
market. The fair value of the long-term debts was derived by comparing interest rates currently being 
offered and the fair value of convertible debentures, limited recourse loan and notes payable were 
established by discounting cash flows at rates currently being offered to the Group for debts with the 
similar maturities and conditions.  

Hierarchy of fair value measurements
The Group classifies its financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value into three levels according 
to the observability of the inputs used in their measurement. 

Level 1 
This level includes assets and liabilities measured at fair value based on unadjusted quoted prices for 
identical assets and liabilities in active markets that the Group can access on the measurement date.

Level 2
This level includes measurements based on directly or indirectly observable inputs other than quoted 
markets prices included in Level 1. Financial instruments in this category are measured using valuation 
models or other standard valuation techniques that rely on observable market inputs.

Level 3 
The measurements used at this level rest on inputs that are unobservable, unavailable, or whose 
observable inputs do not justify the largest part of the fair value instruments.
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As at December 31, 2011:

Risk management
In the normal course of its business, the Group is exposed to a number of risks that can affect its 
operating performance. Management’s close involvement in operations helps identify risks and 
variations from expectations. As a part of the overall operation of the Group, management considers the 
avoidance of undue concentrations of risk. The Group manages its risks and risk exposures through a 
combination of financial instruments, insurance, a system of internal and disclosure controls and sound 
business practices. The primary types of financial risk which arise are liquidity, credit, and market risk.  
These risks and the actions taken to manage them are as follows: 

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial obligations associated with financial 
liabilities in full. A range of alternatives is available to the Group including cash flow provided by 
operations, additional debt, the issuance of equity or a combination thereof. The funds are primarily 
used to finance working capital and capital expenditure requirements and are adequate to meet the 
Group’s foreseeable financial obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The following table presents information on the Group’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value 
and discloses the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques used to determine this fair value at 
December 31, 2012:
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 The following table summarizes the Group’s financial liabilities with corresponding maturity dates as at 
December 31, 2012

The Company expects to have adequate resources to discharge these financial liabilities. The bank 
operating lines are renewable on an annual basis and, to the extent that these are renewed, there is 
no requirement for the balance to be paid down other than in the ordinary course of operations. The 
subordinated notes payable were due on April 30, 2011, but because the notes are subordinated to the 
bank, payment of the notes is not permitted without consent of the bank. At December 31, 2012, the 
Company has $14,286 of trade accounts receivable and $3,907 of unbilled accounts receivable that 
once collected will allow the Company to discharge the remainder of the financial liabilities in the normal 
course. 

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility that customers may experience financial difficulty and be unable to 
fulfill their commitments to the Group. For a financial asset, this is typically the gross carrying amount, 
net of any amounts offset and any impairment losses. The Group has credit policies to address credit 
risk on accounts receivable from customers, which may include the analysis of the financial position 
of customers and review of credit limits. The Group also reviews new customer credit history before 
establishing credit and periodically reviews existing customer credit performance. The Group may 
require letters of credit or credit insurance. An allowance for doubtful accounts is established based 
upon factors surrounding credit risk of specific customers, historical trends and other information. At 
December 31, 2012, the Group had one individual customer accounting for approximately 27% of total 
accounts receivable.  

As at December 31, 2012, the Group has $1,271 of trade accounts receivable over 90 days which have 
not been provisioned ($1,290 as at December 31, 2011).  As at December 31, 2012, trade accounts 
receivable that were provisioned amounted to $136 ($195 as at December 31, 2011). These accounts 
were provisioned due primarily to hardship related to economic conditions of specific customers.

The following table summarizes changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts:
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 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will have an effect on future cash flows associated 
with financial instruments. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and 
commodity price risk.

Currency risk
The Group sells its products, as well as, purchases goods in both Canadian and U.S. currencies 
Accordingly, the Group is exposed to currency risk as it relates to customer accounts receivable 
balances and trade accounts payable denominated in U.S. currency. Changes in the applicable 
exchange rate may result in a decrease or increase in foreign exchange income or expense. The Group 
may enter into forward exchange contracts or use other hedging activities to manage part of the 
foreign risk exposures relating to customer accounts receivable balances and trade accounts payable 
denominated in U.S. currency.

As at December 31, 2012, the Group had U. S. dollar forward currency contracts for $2,000 (2011 - $nil) 
at an exchange rate of $0.9860 per U.S. dollar and maturing in January of 2013. The accounts noted 
below include amounts denominated in U. S. currency that have been converted to the Canadian dollar 
equivalent on the balance sheet date at a rate of $0.9949 per U.S. dollar (2011 - $1.02):

For the year ended December 31, 2012, if the Canadian dollar had strengthened 10% percent against 
the US dollar with all other variables held constant, net income for the period would have been $43 
lower (2011 - $90 lower). Conversely, if the Canadian dollar had weakened 10% percent against the 
US dollar with all other variables held constant, net income would have been $43 higher (2011 - $90 
higher).  

Foreign exchange hedges available for future net receivables are as follows:

Included in revenue are realized losses on translation of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities 
and realized gains on foreign currency forward contracts of $147 for the year ended December 31, 2012 
compared with gains $163 for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates.  The Group is exposed to interest rate risk primarily 
through its variable rates on bank operating lines and long term borrowings.  The Group manages 
exposure to interest rate risk by using a combination of fixed and floating rate debt instruments.
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29.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, if interest rates had been 50 basis points lower with all other 
variables held constant, after-tax net income for the period would have been $57 (December 31, 2011 - 
$90) higher, arising mainly as a result of lower interest expenses on variable borrowings. If interest rates 
had been 50 basis points higher, with all other variables held constant, after-tax net income would have 
been $57 (December 31, 2011 - $90) lower, arising mainly as a result of higher interest expenses on 
variable borrowings.  

Commodity price risk
Manufacturing costs for the Group’s products are affected by fluctuations in the price of raw materials, 
primarily steel.  In order to manage its risk, the Group implements selling price adjustments in order 
to match raw material cost changes. This matching is not always possible as customers react to 
selling price pressures related to raw material cost fluctuations according to conditions pertaining 
to their markets. For long term contracts, the Group may negotiate the inclusion of a flow through 
price adjustment clause into contracts whereby the customer agrees to price changes based on the 
underlying market value of steel. In order to limit the risk associated with steel price increases, the 
Group locks in order prices to the extent possible as soon as contracts are awarded.

The sensitivity analyses in the currency risk and interest rate risk sections above do not take into 
consideration that the Group’s liabilities are actively managed. Additionally, the financial position of the 
Group may vary at the time that any actual market movement occurs or be mitigated by management’s 
actions to reduce exposure to risks. Other limitations in the above sensitivity analyses includes the use 
of hypothetical market movements to demonstrate potential risk that only represent the Group’s view 
of possible near-term market changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty; and the assumption 
that all interest rates move in an identical fashion.

Related parties
Balances with related parties are presented separately in the notes to the consolidated financial 
statements. During 2012, rent was paid to companies controlled by officers, directors and members 
of their families in the amount $167 ($162 in 2011). Also, the Group had sales to an Associate in the 
amount $541 ($555 in 2010), $60 of which were management fees in both periods. These transactions 
are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount 
of consideration established and agreed to by the parties.

Compensation awarded to key management included.
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Corporate Profile

Empire Industries Ltd. (“Empire”) is a public company that was formed in July 2006. Empire’s mission is to 
increase shareholder value by adding value to steel.  Empire operates the following wholly owned business 
units:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued...

30.

31.

32.

Subsidiaries

Guarantees and contingencies

Loan guarantees
The Group is contingently liable under one guarantee given to a third-party lender who has provided 
certain financing facilities to associated investments. As at December 31, 2012, the maximum amount 
of fixed guarantees provided to a third-party lender on behalf of an affiliated company is $1,997 ($936 
as at December 31, 2011). In addition, the Company has provided an unlimited guarantee on behalf of 
an equity investment over which the Company exercises significant influence.

Letters of Credit
In the normal course of business, the Group contracted letters of credit for an amount of up to $280 as 
at December 31, 2012 ($200 as at December 31, 2011).

Director and officer indemnification
The Group indemnifies its directors and officers against any and all claims or losses reasonably incurred 
in the performance of their service to the Group to the extent permitted by law. The Group has acquired 
and maintains liability insurance for its directors and officers as well as those of its wholly-owned 
subsidiaries and certain affiliated companies.

Other indemnification provisions
From time to time, the Group enters into agreements in the normal course of operations and in 
connection with business or asset acquisitions and dispositions. By their nature, these agreements may 
provide for indemnification of counterparties. The varying nature of these indemnification agreements 
prevents the Group from making a reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amount it could incur.  
Historically, the Group has not made any significant payments in connection with these indemnification 
provisions.

Other contingencies
The Group is subject to various product liability or general claims and legal proceedings covering 
matters that arise in the ordinary course of business.  All such matters are adequately covered by 
insurance or by accruals, or are determined by management to be without merit, or of such kinds or 
amounts as would not have a material adverse effect on the financial results of the Group.

Divestitures
During the year, the Group disposed of the assets of its KWH and Somerset Engineering divisions with 
a net book value of $50 for gross proceeds of $1,406 resulting in a gain on sale of $1,356.  Proceeds 
of $1,356 were used to retire subordinate notes payable and the remaining $50 was used for general 
working capital purposes.

Business

Design and manufacture complex ride systems, telescopes and custom 
machinery and equipment for the global theme park, education/
government, and infrastructure markets.

Turnkey global supplier of premium media-based entertainment attractions 
to major theme parks, and provider of parts and service for theme park 
attractions.

Structural steel fabrication and installation for the industrial and 
infrastructure markets in western Canada, primarily the oil sands and 
mining.

Manufacture hydrovac trucks for excavation service providers to the oil and 
gas industry and the municipal market.

Fabrication of tanks, pressure vessels and other specialty carbon and 
stainless steel products.

In addition to these wholly owned businesses, Empire holds significant equity interests in two major 
business enterprises:

Empire maintains its head office in Winnipeg, Manitoba.  Its common shares are listed on the TSX Venture 
Exchange under the trading symbol EIL.

Division

Dynamic Structures

Dynamic Attractions

Empire Iron Works

Tornado Hydrovacs

Parr Metal Fabricators

Enterprise

Athabasca Chipewyan 
Empire (ACE) Industrial 
Services Ltd. (49%)

Dongguan Qiguang 
Dynamic Steel Structures, 
Ltd. (45%)

Business

Steel fabrication and installation, machining, multi-trade industrial 
construction and maintenance services, primarily serving the oil sands 
market. Facilities are in Fort McMurray, AB. This is a joint venture between 
the Athabasca Chipewyan First Nation Business Group and Empire 
Industries Ltd.

Fabrication and installation of complex structural steel projects in China 
through a joint venture Company owned 55% by Guangdong Qiguang Steel 
Structures Co. Ltd. and 45% by Empire Industries Ltd. Operates out of a 
leased facility in Guangdong Province in China.
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